


His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

February 18, 2022
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The Byrne JAG Grant Program is a federal formula grant the Department of Justice
receives for the purpose of supporting law enforcement initiatives. For the grant, each state
receiving the funds needed to have a five-year strategic plan in place for the grant. In December
2018, a steering committee began work on the strategic plan. Members of the steering
committee represented law enforcement, prosecution, courts, public defenders, corrections,
parole and probation, and reentry services.

Working in collaboration, the Byrne JAG steering committee formulated a written
strategic plan and defined needs for the funding that would best benefit the state. Committee
members voted to continue with drug interdiction, by continuing to fund the Department’s Drug
Task Force, and to provide funds to the New Hampshire Public Defenders Office to hire a social
work advocate to further combat the drug crisis.

The social work advocate works with treatment providers throughout New Hampshire
and identifies housing options for public defender clients struggling with drug addiction. This
position also assists in helping public defender clients meet court ordered requirements. In
addition, the social work advocate supervises up to seven social worker interns providing
additional services to public defender clients.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this subgrant item.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Thank you for
your consideration of this request.

Respectfully submitted,
T i
A () .
/

John M. Formella
Attorney General

#3449373



FORM NUMBER G-1 (versien 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. l1dentification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Justice 33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301
1.3. Grantee Name 1.4. Grantee Address

New Hampshire Public Defender 10 Ferry Street, Suite 434, Concord, NH 03301
e B e e e (R NG omp ctiom D ate B KIS YGrantil inication
L el 02-20-20-201510- 06/30/2023 $ 75,000.00

4458-072-500575 T

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

Kathleen Carr 603-271-1234

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meeting requixement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Grangee Sigylature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1
CANDY HawKeS  Cxecumive JiRECTIR NHPD

Grantee Sig‘;latt‘re 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: 1/27/2022

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /o

2. SCOPE OF WORK: Inexchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as “the State”), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 ¢(hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee™), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as “the Project™).
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82.
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9.1

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the Staie of New
Hampshire.

EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the pasties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 31.16), or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (“the Effective Date™).
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in I'TS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinaficr referred to as “the Completion Date™).

GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.
The Grant Amount is identificd and moce particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.

In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBLIT C, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Granteg the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.-H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.

The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurved by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agrecment ta the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized,
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
these general provisions.

COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In
conneclion with the perfarmance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b,
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years afler the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years afier the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee’s normal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State al!
records pertaining to malters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the Stale to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, “Grantee” includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions

PER NEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and autharized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.

The Grantee shal} not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.

The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his‘her decision on any dispute, shall be final.

DATA: RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all information and things
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,

Page 2 of 32

92.

93.

94.

9.5.

1.
1L1.

1.1
11.1.2
11.13
114
11.2.

11.2.1

1122

1123
1124

12.
12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, snemoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant 0
the State, or any person designated by i, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpoese whatsoeves.

No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.

On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned o the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymenls hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termimnation of those funds, the State shall
have the right to withho!d payment uatil such funds become available, (f ever, and
shall have the right o terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or amissions of the Grantee shall censtitute
an event of default hereunder {hereinafier referred to as “Events of Default™}:
Failure to perform the Project satistactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report required hercunder; or

Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions:

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
10 be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afler giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the
Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against any other abligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and

Treat the agreement as breached and pursueany of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any ¢arly termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fiftecn (§5) days afler the datc of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the “Termination Report™) describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, 10 and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gencral
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termnation.

in the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 124 of these gencral
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee’s breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary. either the State or,
except where notice default has been given 1o the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshure ar of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project 15 to be
performed, who exercises any functions ar responsibilities in the review or




14.

17.
17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.

any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds theseof.
GRANTEE’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subconiractor or subgrantee of
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officess,
employces, agents, members, subconiractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen’s
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise transfer any inferest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shail defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf
of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregaing, nothing hercin contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement.

INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance;

Statutory workers” compensation and employees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and
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20.

21

22.

23.

24,

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of'this paragraph shali be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, centificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee
NOTICE. Any notice by a party herelo to the other party shal be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding uponand inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the “subject” blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, a supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings selating hereto,

v . The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.







EXHIBIT A

(2019-DJ-BX-0050)
SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary.
The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

2. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the Subrecipient
on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a copy of the
finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 2053 1. For additional information regarding your
obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-
management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded funding from this office, civil

rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. §

I 1182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86);
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex.
Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations;
Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships With
Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at
28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$£81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
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EXHIBIT A

rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior approval
requests require additional justification.

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDO)J), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be
billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
NH DOJ.

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future vears.

7. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200
Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2018 award from NHDOJ.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this
FY 2018 award supplements funds previously awarded by NHDOJ under the same award
number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award
date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are
obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2018 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to
NHDOJ subawards ("subgrants"), see the United States Department of Justice website at
https://DOJ.gov/funding/Part200UniformR equirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the subrecipient {"subgrantee")
at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the finai
expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the
subrecipient must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to
the financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records
indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or
distributed by NHDOJ that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the
provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the subrecipient is to contact NHDOJ
promptly for clarification.

8. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide
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EXHIBIT A

The subrecipient agrees to comply with the Department of Justice Grants Financial Guide as
posted on the OJP website (currently, the "2017 DOJ Grants Financial Guide"), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance.

9. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

Any "subrecipient” at any tier must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach” (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) — (1) creates, collects, uses,
processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable
information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity,
or (2) uscs or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB

Circuiar A-130). The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report
actual or imminent breach of PIl to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an
occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

10. Requirements related to "de minimis” indirect cost rate

A subrecipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use
the "de minimis” indirect cost rate, must advise QJP in writing of both its eligibility and its
election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements. The "de minimis” rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC)
as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

11. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any
other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award. the recipient
promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are
being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost items for which
funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and. If so requested
by DOJ awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope grant
adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.

12. Requirements related to System for Award Management and Unique Entity Identifiers
The subrecipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at http://www.sam.gov. This includes applicable

requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of
information in SAM.
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EXHIBIT A

The subrecipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to
first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities

that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the recipient’s obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at http:/ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition:

System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here.

13. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. Any subrecipient at any tier must--Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position
within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the
recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who
is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2).

A.Notify all persons associated with any subrecipient who are or will be invoived in
activities under this award of both--

(Dthis award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2)the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2) that, generally speaking,

make it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain
aliens.

C.Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this
condition to be notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility
verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200
Uniform Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications
pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with Form [-9 record
retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award
funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.
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EXHIBIT A

4.Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient)
officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a
position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B.Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employment eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-
Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf
of the subrecipient uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify procedures,
including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation” or a "Final Nonconfirmation")
to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States
that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C."United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam,
the Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern
Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any
subrecnglent at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any
applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve

any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any
obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-
Verify visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E- Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.

14. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement
contract that would exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently,
$250,000). This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes of federal grants
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EXHIBIT A

administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract” {and therefore does not
consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract under an QJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm {(Award condition: Specific
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

15. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements
(including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the
trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees™), or
individuals defined (for purposes of this condition ) as "employees” of the recipient or of any
subrecipient.

The details of the subrecipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OJP web site at http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProbibitedCooduct-
TrafTicking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to
trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)),
and are incorporated by reference here.

16. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences,
meetings, trainings, and other events.

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting
requirements. where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to
conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages at
such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Post award
Requirements” in the "2017 DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

17. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of

activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within
the time frames) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written
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EXHIBIT A

guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results
Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act, and other applicable laws.

18. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees
and Subgrantees, available at http://ojp.gov/funding/ojp trainingguidingprinciples.htm,

19. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The subrecipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the subrecipient does not satisfactorily and promptly
address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the
terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

20. The subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by
the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for
this award, if the subrecipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk
grantee list.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 42

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F. R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part
42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R. Part 54

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education
programs."

23. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 38

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38, specifically including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to
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EXHIBIT A

program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries. Part 38 of 28 C.F.R., a DOJ
regulation, was amended effective May 4, 2016.

Among other things, 28 C. F. R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements
that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee”) organizations that engage in or conduct
explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations," is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible
at http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bi/ECFR ?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial
Administration, Chapter I, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

24. Restrictions on "lobbying"

Federal funds may not be used by the recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantec") at any tier,
either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption
of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of Federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of this prohibition, the recipient is to contact
OJ P for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

25. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the
use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including
from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, are set out at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY2016-AppropriationsLawRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the
recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of OJP.

26. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct

Any subrecipients ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor,
subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award -- {1) submitted a

claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws
pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.
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Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OILG by-- (1) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S.
Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Room 4706 ,
Washington, DC 20530; (2) e-mail to: oig.hotline@usdoj.gov; and/or (3) the DOJ OIG hotline:

(contact information in English and Spanish) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (20 2) 616-9881
(fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ QIG website at hitp://www.usdoj.gov/oig.

27. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract
or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign
an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or
purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting ( in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse
to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency
authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other

form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

1. Inaccepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently

restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or
purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. Ifithe recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"),
procurement contracts, or both--

a. it represents that-
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EXHIBIT A

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or
will receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement
contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required
internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that
currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict)
employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support
this representation; and

(2)it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or
subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its
employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity,
will provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making this award, and will

resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so
by that agency.

28. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The subrecipient must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712
including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination
against an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross
mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating
to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of
law, rule, or reguliation related to a federal grant.

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,
the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

29. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009) , DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
{("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during 'he course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.
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30. The subrecipient agrees to comply with OJP grant monitoring guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with BJA and OCFO on all grant monitoring requests, including
requests related to desk reviews, enhanced programmatic desk reviews, and/or site visits. The
subrecipient agrees to provide to BJA and OCFO all documentation necessary to complete
monitoring tasks, including documentation related to any subawards made under this award.
Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by BJA and OCFO for
providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with BJA's/OCFO's grant monitoring
activities may result in sanctions affecting the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited
to: withholdings and/or other restrictions on the recipient's access to grant funds; referral to the
Office of the Inspector General for audit review; designation of the recipient as a DOJ High Risk
grantee; or termination of an award(s).

31. The recipient agrees to comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards of
$25,000 or more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the
five most highly compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients of award
funds. Such data will be submitted to the FFATA Subaward Reporting System (FSRS). The
details of recipient obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted on the Office of Justice Programs website at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here. This condition, and its
reporting requirement, does not apply to grant awards made to an individual who received the
award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she
may own or operate in his or her name).

32. To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives funded by BJA for
law enforcement information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between
jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the
communication backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless the grantee can demonstrate
to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement would not be cost effective or would impair the
functionality of an existing or proposed [T system.

33. Compliance with 28 C.F.R. Part 23

With respect to any information technology system funded or supported by funds under this
award, any subrecipient at any tier must comply with 28 C.F.R. Part 23, Criminal Intelligence
Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation to be applicable. Should OJP
determine 28 C.F.R. Part 23 to be applicable, OJP may, at its discretion, perform audits of the
system, as per the regulation. Should any violation of 28 C.F.R. Part 23 occur, the subrecipient

may be fined as per 34 U.S.C. 10231(c)-(d). The subrecipient may not satisfy such a fine with
federal funds.

34. Subrecipient understands and agrees that award funds may not be used for items that are
listed on the Prohibited Expenditure List at the time of purchase or acquisition, including as the
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EXHIBIT A

list may be amended from time to time. The Prohibited Expenditure list may be accessed here:
https://www.bja.gov/funding/JAGControlledPurchaseL ist.pdf.

35. Subrecipient understands and agrees that award funds may not be used for items that are
listed on the Controlled Expenditure List at the time of purchase or acquisition, including as the
list may be amended from time to time, without explicit written prior approval from BJA. The
Controlled Expenditure List and instructions on how to request approval for purchase or
acquisitions may be accessed here: hitps://www.bja.gov/funding/IAGControlledPurchasel.ist.pdf

36. The Subrecipient understands that, pursuant to recommendation 2.1 of Executive Order
13688, law enforcement agencies that acquire controlled equipment through Federal programs
must adopt robust and specific written policies and protocols governing General Policing
Standards and Specific Controlled Equipment Standards. General Policing Standards includes
policies on (a) Community Policing; (b) Constitutional Policing; and (¢} Community Input and
Impact Considerations. Specific Controlled Equipment Standards includes policies specifically
related to (a) Appropriate Use of Controlled Equipment; (b) Supervision of Use; (c)
Effectiveness Evaluation; (d) Auditing and Accountability; and () Transparency and Notice
Considerations. Upon OJP's request, the recipient agrees to provide a copy of the General

Policing Standards and Specific Controlled Equipment Standards, and any related policies and
protocols.

37. Subrecipient understands and agrees that the purchase or acquisition of any item on the
Controlled Expenditure List at the time of purchase or acquisition, including as the list may be
amended from time to time, with award funds by an agency will trigger a requirement that the
agency collect and retain (for at least 3 years) certain information about the use of 1) any
federally-acquired Controlled Equipment in the agency's inventory, and 2) any other controlled
equipment in the same category as the federally-acquired controlled equipment in the agency's
inventory, regardless of source; and make that information available to BJA upon request.
Details about what information must be collected and retained may be accessed here:
https://www.whitechouse.gov/sites/default/files/docs/le_equipment_wg_final_report_final.pdf

38. Subrecipient understands and agrees that failure to comply with conditions related to
Prohibited or Controlled Expenditures may result in a prohibition from further Controlled
Expenditure approval under this or other federal awards.

39. Subrecipient understands and agrees that, notwithstanding 2 CFR § 200.313 , no equipment
listed on the Controlled Expenditure List that is purchased under this award may be transferred
or sold to a third party, except as described below:

a. Agencies may transfer or sell any controlled equipment, except riot helmets and riot shiclds, to
Law Enforcement Agency (LEA) after obtaining prior written approval from BJA. As a
condition of that approval, the acquiring LEA will be required to submit information and

Page 16 of 32 l
Subrecipient Initials Q‘

Date \Z” 22'1-



EXHIBIT A

certifications to BJA as if it was requesting approval to use award fund for the initial purchase of
items on the Controlled Expenditure List.

b. Agencies may not transfer or sell any riot helmets or riot shields purchased under this award.
c. Agencies may not transfer or sell any Controlled Equipment purchased under this award to
non-LEAs, with the exception of fixed wing aircraft, rotary wing aircraft, and command and
control vehicles. Before any such transfer or sale is finalized, the agency must obtain prior
written approval from BJA. All law enforcement-related and other sensitive or potentially
dangerous components, and all law enforcement insignias and identifying markings must be
removed prior to transfer or sale.

Recipient further understands and agrees to notify BJA prior to the disposal of any items on the
Controlled Expenditure List purchased under this award, and to abide by any applicable laws and
regulations in such disposal.

40. BJA strongly encourages the recipient to submit annual (or more frequent) JAG success
stories. To submit a success story, sign in to your My BJA account at
https://www.bja.gov/Login.aspx to access the Success Story Submission form. if you do not yet
have a My BJA account, please register at https://www.bja.gov/profile.aspx. Once you register,
one of the available areas on your My BJA page will be "My Success Stories". Within this box,
you will see an option to add a Success Story. Once reviewed and approved by BJA, all success
stories will appear on the new BJA Success Story web page at
https://www.bja.gov/SuccessStoryList.aspx.

41. Required data on law enforcement agency training

Any law enforcement agency receiving direct or sub-awarded funding from this JAG award must
submit quarterly accountability metrics data related to training that officers have received on the
use of force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive engagement with
the public.

42. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award
(as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding
announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute -- that a purpose of some or all of
the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a subrecipient at any
tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

Any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals
may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's
employment status.
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The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of

suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

1 have read and understand all 42 special conditions contained in this document:

EANDY  Hhpwies EXECUTIVE Direcroll (NI ED

Name arfd Title of Authorized Representative
| JAyES

N

Signature Date
New HAMPSIIRE QuBuc Yelerde (0 GeRRY ST, swire 434 concoty NI p33¢)
Name and Address of Agency
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EXHIBIT B
-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

New Hampshire Public Defender as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New
Hampshire Department of Justice as the State Agency (DOJ) for expenses incurred and
services provided for activities surrounding the purpose of hiring a Social Worker
Advocate to assist public defender clients in obtaining inpatient or intensive outpatient
treatment for substance use disorder.

The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly

report is due on April 15" or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31

Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the
Federal Grant,

Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov.
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EXHIBIT C
- PAYMENT TERMS-

. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ’s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

. The State’s obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $75,000.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from 1/01/22 to 06/30/23, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to 01/01/22 nor after 06/30/23.
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EXHIBIT D

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, | certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1) I have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with ail award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;

b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and

c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6102);

b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title [ of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(¢) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(c)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b){13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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EXHIBIT D

c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and

d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, | make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOIJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) | assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(17)), [ assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and

b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and

b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(11),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law--including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act--seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(11).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, | assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department’s awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

ARANDM HAwth

Exgutivg Y RELtol  NEPD

Name ut orlzed Signor Title of Authorized Signor

ﬂ \jn/ll ase e

Slgnatura Date

Page 24 of 32
Subrecipient Initials
Date_\/12/22



EXHIBITE

-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds will not be used to supplant State or local
funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II, Chapter 3)

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/part2/part2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the

terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

The New Hampshire Public Defender (Subrecipient) certifics that any funds awarded through
grant number __ 2019-DJ-BX-0050 shall be used to supplement existing funds

for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The New Hampshire Public Defender (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting violations may
result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds under this
program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under

this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Signature:

Printed Name andg itmfA/utlj)rized Signor: RANDM thywueS  exstunve DiRecart
\

Page 25 of 32

Subrecipient Initials Qi
Date \Zﬂ 212_



EXHIBIT F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

T

AT

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipients should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which
they are required to attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice (“Department”) determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

{b) If the Subrecipient’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency’s) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS
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EXHIBIT F

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrecipient certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or

performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local} transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals’) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipient or any of its principals
was convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipient also must disclose such felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Department (for OJP Subrecipients, to OJP at
Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov),
unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. Ifthe Subrecipient is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
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EXHIBIT F

(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (for OJP

Subrecipients, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW
at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subrecipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
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EXHIBIT F

(e} Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

RhDY HAwkeS

/\NL\ | Brecut(ve Didsetol  prply

Name #f Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor
. Ji7/22

Signature - Date

New HMaBshige Puguc Defowdal 10 AIAYST Sote Y3y tonad NY §330)

Name and Address of Agency
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EXHIBIT G
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
(FFATA) Compliance

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires
Subrecipients of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on
or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated
first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent
grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation

Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annua! gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Fxecutive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient’s

representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT G

Certification
RRADY sawies  EewnvE brgrol NEP
Name of-Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor
%L\f l/ 17 / 22
Signature \ Date = |

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, [ certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ! 208851 76

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

é NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop
here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the
following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the
following:

5. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your business or organization are as follows:
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Name:

EXHIBIT G
Certification
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC
DEFENDER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 06, 1985. |

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s oflice have been received and is in good standing as

(ar as this oflice is concerned.

Business I1D: 83694
Certificate Number: 0005638302

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seat of the State of New Hampshire,
this 19th day of January A.D. 2022,

Gir Lo

William M. Gardner

f
~

0
oy “ ‘.-51‘4‘ A
= - -y
e e i §f

:

§ =)

Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

On January 10, 2022 the Board of Directors of the New Hampshire Public Defender, a private,
nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of New Hampshire with principal offices at 10
Ferry Street, Suite 434, Concord, NH 03301, voted to adopt the following resolutions:

RESOLVED: That the New Hampshire Public Defender enter into a Grant Agreement with the
State of New Hampshire Department of Justice that will enable NHPD to provide additional
services for indigent clients afflicted with substance use disorder. Grant funding in the amount
of seventy-five thousand dollars {$75,000) will be used to defray expenses incurred in hiring
and employing a social worker for the period January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.

RESOLVED: That Randy Hawkes, Executive Director of New Hampshire Public Defender, is given
full authority to execute any and all documents necessary to enter into this Agreement.

| certify that these resolutions, having been duly adopted by vote of the Board of Directors of
the New Hampshire Public Defender, remain in full force and effect, and have not been
revoked, rescinded, or modified.

| further certify that Randy Hawkes is the Executive Director of the New Hampshire Public
Defender and is still qualified and serving in that capacity.

ay: ‘5 | OL/\‘ //// / [va

Risa Evans, Secretary Date




Client#: 1739328

ACORD..

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NEWHAM16

DATE (MMDD/YYYY)
1/19/2022

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BEL.OW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: i the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this cartificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
US| Insurance Services LLC
711 E. Main Street

CONTAZY Matt Roberts

PHONE

PHONE - . 855 874-0123 [T2% wer. 781-376-5035

EMAL 5. matt.roberts@usi.com

Suite 201 (NSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Chicopee, MA 01020 INSURER 4 : Selective Insurance Co of the Southeast 39926
INSURED INSURER & : AMTRUST GROUP GROUP
New Hampshire Public Defender
INSURERC :
10 Ferry Street, Suite 434 Crms——
Concord, NH 03301 -
INSURER € :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'E‘,sg" TYPE OF INSURANCE Lﬂ’&'j;s“;“ POLICY NUMBER m’ﬂ:%c Sy (umlbpc m LIMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $2444686 07/01/2021|07/01/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
] cLams maoe @ OCCUR BRYA! csirance) | $500,000
| MED EXP (Any one person) | 5,000
- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 52,000,000
] PRO-
| X| povicy | | Jeer D Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 52,000,000
OTHER: s
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LivIT
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
e D ity ol BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Par accidenl)
$
A | X|umBRELLAUAB | X |oCCUR 52444686 07/01/2021|07/01/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $3,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $3,000,0600
DED | [ RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
B | AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY i TARNH104357200 07/01/2021]07/01/2022 X I STATUTE ] [ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? [ N![nra E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
='Mandaloty in NH) . E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
. d ibe und:
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LiMiT | $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (AGORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be altached if morve space is raquired)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of
Justice

33 Capltol Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

T Yy

ACORD 25 {2016/03) 1 of 1
#534732625/M32786977

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 and 2020
TOGETHER WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT







NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

020

4,382,599
23,751,832
51,674
543,219

480,248
64,523

29,274,095

56,022
3,056,242
39,120
389,300
28,590
94,939
625,794

4,290,007

687,485
24,296,603

ASSETS
2021

Assets
Cash $ 4,826,156
Government Contract Receivable -
Deposits and Other Receivables 43,505
Prepaid Expenses 544,135
Equipment, Leasehold Improvements and Property Held Under Capital
Leases, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 726,162
Law Library 34,523

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,174,481

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities
Accounts Payable — State of New Hampshire $ 728,771
Accounts Payable 130,637
Note Payable -
Obligations under Capital Lease -
Salaries Payable 438,100
Payroll Taxes Payable 32,230
Other Accrued Expenses 108,332
Accrued Annual Leave 679,710

Total Liabilities $ 2,117,780
Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions $ 3,296,016
With Donor Restrictions 760,685
Total Net Assets $ 4,056,701

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 6,174,481

24,984,088

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29,274,095




NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Revenues and gains
State Contract
Other Income

Interest Income
Total Revenues and Gains Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets Released from restrictions

Expiration of program restricitons
Total Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Without Donor Restrictions

Expenses
Program services

Administrative

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

State contract

Return to State of New Hampshire - Unused Grant

Net assets released from restrictions

Reduction in law library

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

NET ASSETS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021 2020
$ - $ 23,119,355
3,328,098 -
17,535 28,309
3,345,633 23,147,664
23,751,832 -
23,751,832 ;
27,097,465 23,147,664
21,938,952 21,332,724
1,575,297 1,418,933
23,514,249 22,751,657
3,583,216 396,007
- 23,751,832
(728,771) -
(23,751,832) -
(30,000) -
(24,510,603) 23,751,832
(20,927,387) 24,147,839
24,984,088 836,249
$ 4,056,701 $ 24,984,088




Expenses
Personal Services

Payroll Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Insurance —Workers Compensation
Rent and Storage

Telephone

Travel

Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance -Malpractice/General
Training

Office Supplies

Other office Expense

Library

Utilities

Dues and Licenses

Contract Services

Professional Services

Interest

Depreciation

Total Expenses

NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2021 AND 2020

Program 2021 Program 2020

Services Administrative Total Services Administrative Total
13,915,127 $ 1,074,816 S 14,989,943 S 13,431,604 S 969,699 S 14,401,303
1,059,638 79,536 1,139,174 1,016,789 73,697 1,090,486
3,756,081 290,200 4,046,281 3,807,276 264,751 4,072,027
44,878 2,843 47,721 36,949 3,039 39,988
1,323,063 59,212 1,382,275 1,298,427 52,769 1,351,196
185,195 11,731 196,926 177,012 12,712 189,724
38,301 13,423 51,724 198,226 9,178 207,404
285,705 5,831 291,536 195,989 820 196,809
53,958 2,193 56,151 52,474 1,054 53,528
12,546 510 13,056 70,784 4,518 75,302
60,893 3,857 64,750 46,740 2,460 49,200
426,797 15,633 442,430 222,051 11,220 233,271
22,300 906 23,206 46,851 924 47,775
104,271 6,597 110,868 115,932 6,750 122,682
76,526 3,111 79,637 73,517 2,825 76,342
195,715 - 195,715 222,147 - 222,147
113,458 4,898 118,356 71,075 2,517 73,592
3,260 - 3,260 8,040 - 8,040
261,240 - 261,240 240,841 - 240,841
21,938,952 $ 1,575,297 $ 23,514,249 $ 21,332,724 S 1,418,933 $ 22,751,657

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets to Net

Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities
Non-cash items: Depreciation
Debt Forgiveness

Law Library

Changes in Assets and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in:  Government Contract Receivable

Deposits and Other Receivables
Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in:  Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash (Used) to Purchase Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowing on Note Payable

Repayment of Capital Lease Obligation

Net Cash Provided By (Used In ) Financing Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosures

Interest Paid

2021 2020
$  (20,927,387) $ 24,147,839
261,240 240,841
(3,056,242) -
30,000 -
23,751,832 (23,751,832)
8,169 1,187
(916) (71,720)
803,386 (497,479)
119,749 (387,455)
989,831 (318,619)
(507,154) (9,708)
- 3,056,242
(39,120) (94,464)
(39,120) 2,961,778
443,557 2,633,451
4,382,599 1,749,148
$ 4,826,156 $ 4,382,599
$ 3,260 $ 8,040

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 and 2020

Nature of Operations

New Hampshire Public Defender (NHPD) is a non—profit corporation organized for the purpose of providing
constitutionally required legal representation for indigent individuals in the criminal justice system in the State
of New Hampshire. NHPD receives its funding from a two-year contract from the New Hampshire Judicial
Council which is an executive branch agency of the State of New Hampshire.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

This summary of significant accounting policies of NHPD is presented to assist in understanding the financial
statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the organization’s management, who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally accepted
accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the presentation of the financial statements.

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of the NHPD have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

NHPD reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restriction and net assets with donor restriction.
a) Net Assets Without Donor Restriction — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
b) Net Assets With Donor Restriction — Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed time and/or
purpose restrictions.

Revenues

NHPD’s State contract covers a two-year period. In the first year of the contract, the entire contract is reported
as revenues by reporting half as an increase in net assets without restrictions and half as an increase in net assets
with restrictions. In the second year, the expiration of the restrictions occurs which requires a reclassification
between the applicable classes of net assets.

Interest, investment gains (losses), and other assets and liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net
assets without restrictions unless their use is restricted.

Other revenues are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without restrictions unless their use is
restricted.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows shows cash and cash equivalents provided for and used by operating, investing and
financing activities. The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.




NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 and 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements
Equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at cost. Assets acquired through capital lease agreements

are recorded in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
which require capitalization at their fair market value as of the date of the lease inception.

Property acquired in excess of $1000 is capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over the
assets estimated useful life as follows:

Computer and Office Equipment 3-5 Years
Property Held Under Capital Leases 5 Years
Leasehold Improvements 5-10 Years

All property has been acquired with funds from the State of New Hampshire which holds a reversionary interest
in these assets.

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are
removed from the accounts, along with the related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss is recognized.

A summary of equipment and leasehold improvements is as follows:

Equipment, Leasehold Improvements and Capital Lease 2021 2020
Equipment and Leasehold Improvements
Computer and Office Equipment $ 990,634 § 666,685
Leasehold Improvements 1,204,248 1,122,825
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,531,839) (1,414,460)
Net Equipment and Leasehold Improvements 663,043 375,050
Capital Lease
Property Held Under Capital Lease 332,054 332,054
Less Accumulated Depreciation (268,935) (226,856)
Net Property Held Under Capital Lease 63,119 105,198

Total $ 726,162 $ 480,248

Depreciation expense includes the depreciation of assets held under capital leases. Depreciation expense was
$261,240 and $240,841 for its years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Law Library
NHPD capitalizes the cost of books and multiple volume sets of law books and estimates the salvage value to be

approximately the same as the original cost, therefore, depreciation expense is not recorded. Supplemental costs
to update loose leaf and other continuously updated volumes are expensed.

The law library has been acquired with funds from the State of New Hampshire which holds a reversionary
interest in these assets. In 2021 management estimated $30,000 of its law library is obsolete and accordingly
the law library has been reduced by $30,000.



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 and 2020

Liquidity And Availability of Financial Assets
The following reflects the NHPD’s financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts not
available for general use because of contractual restrictions within one year of the balance sheet date.

2021 2020
Financial assets at year-end $ 4,826,156 $ 28,134,431
Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Surplus for unexpended State Contract 728,771 -
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure
within one year $ 4,097,385 $ 28,134,431

NHPD is substantially supported by a restricted contract. Because the restriction requires resources to be used
in a particular manner or in a future period, NHPD must maintain sufficient resources to meet those
responsibilities pursuant to the contract. Thus, financial assets may not be available for general expenditures
within one year. As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial
assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations become due. NHPD maintains
cash in excess of daily requirements in its general operating bank account and earns interest.

Note Payable
On June 30, 2020, the organization had a $3,056,242 unsecured loan due to the Small Business Administration

(SBA) as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act’s Paycheck Protection Plan (PPP).

Under the terms of the loan, all loan payments were deferred for six months through October 19, 2020, with
monthly interest payments thereafter at one percent per annum, and the entire loan balance is due April 19,2022.

The loan terms provide that a portion or all of the loan is forgivable to the extent that the organization uses loan
proceeds to fund qualifying payroll, rent and utilities during a designated eight-week period. As of May
21,2021, the SBA has forgiven the entire $3,056,242 loan balance. The forgiveness is reflected in other revenue
in the financial statements.

Obligations Under Capital Lease

N
N
—

2020
Capital Leases Payable to Winthrop Resources Corporation

The first lease requires 60 monthly principal and interest payments of

$2,218 with interest imputed at 4.25%, secured by Omni Cubes, expires

August 2020 $ - $ 4,056

The second lease requires 36 monthly principal and interest payments
of $6,234 with interest imputed at 5.5%, secured by computer
equipment, expires December 2020 - 35,064

Total $ - $ 39,120




NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 and 2020

Lease Commitments
NHPD has entered into various operating lease agreements for its facilities and office equipment.

Facilities - All lease commitments for office and storage space, except the Laconia location, are subject to
termination by NHPD if funding contingencies set forth in the leases are not met. The estimated future
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, 2021 Total Estimated Annual Lease Commitments
2022 $1,117,812
2023 $ 1,098,659
2024 $ 953,603
2025 $ 696,606
2026 $ 646,292

Rent expense, excluding storage, was $1,382,275 and $1,351,196 for its years ended 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Equipment Leases - The Company has several equipment lease agreements for its office equipment.

Equipment lease expense was $ 93,334 and $ 60,852 for its year ended 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Annual Leave

All unused vacation time, in accordance with a formula, will be paid upon the termination of an employee.
NHPD estimates this unused and accrued vacation pay to be $ 679,710 and $ 625,794 for its years ended June
30,2021 and 2020.

Income Taxes

NHPD is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. NHPD is
also exempt from New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for Federal or State
income taxes.

NHPD evaluates all significant tax positions. As of June 30, 2021, NHPD does not believe that it has taken any
positions that would require the recording of any additional tax liability nor does it believe that there are any
unrealized tax benefits that would either increase or decrease within the next year.

Penalties and interest assessed by income taxing authorities would be included in operating expenses.

Federal and State tax returns are generally available for examination by the taxing authorities for three years
from the date of filing. As of June 30, 2021, those years are 2018 through 2021.

Retirement Plan
NHPD sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) for all
qualifying employees.

The Plan requires NHPD to match 50% of each participating employee’s contribution, not to exceed 5% of their
wages. NHPD contributed $287,274 and $254,849 for its years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 and 2020

Concentrations

Economic Dependency - NHPD receives all its funding under a contract with the State of New Hampshire
which expires on June 30, 2021. The future existence of NHPD is solely dependent upon the State renewing the
contract. On June 7, 2021 the contract was renewed for an additional two years, expiring on June 30, 2023.

Cash - NHPD maintains its bank accounts at one financial institution. The accounts are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Excess funds are secured by Letters of Credit.

Grant Receivable - Represents the second year of a two-year state contract. As of June 30, 2021, and 2020, the
receivable is $0 and $23,751,832 respectively.

Other Revenue

2021 2020
Debt forgiveness — note payable due to the Small Business
Administration (see note 4) $ 3,056,242 $ -
The Governor’s Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery funding
which reimburses NHPD for technology expenditures incurred for
operational changes necessitated by the covid-19 pandemic. 271,856 -
Total $ 3,328,098 $ -

Accounts Payable — State of New Hampshire (Unused Grant)

The State contract, provided by the Judicial Council, requires NHPD to return its unused grant funds which, as
of June 30, 2021, is $728,711. In 2020 NHPD borrowed $3,056,242 from the Small Business Administration
(SBA) as part of the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act’s Paycheck Protection Plan (PPP).
These funds were used to pay NHPD’s payroll, rent and utilities. Accordingly, NHPD did not use its grant
funds for those expenses. Management has consulted with an attorney to determine if the $3,056,242 should be
considered as part of the unused grant. The attorney could not reach a conclusion nor provide an opinion
because of a lack of available legal precedent. NHPD informed the NH Judicial Council regarding the
$3,056,242 and as of November 8, 2021 the Council has not determined if they will seek reimbursement.
Accordingly, the financial statements do not reflect the additional $3,056,242 as a liability.

Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 8, 2021, the date on which the financial

statements were available to be issued. There were no subsequent events that require recognition or additional
disclosure in these financial statements.



NHPD Board of Directors 2022

Cathy Green, President, member of finance committee
Risa Evans, Secretary

Steve Gordon

Peg O’Brien

Richard Guerriero, member of finance committee
Mike lacopino*, member of finance committee

Phil Waystack*

Kim Weibrecht*, member of finance committee

Pam Phelan

*appointed by the Board of Governors of the NH Bar Association
(pursuant to NHPD’s Art. Of Incorporation, as amended 6.4.1985)



Salaries of key personnel primarily responsible for meeting the terms and
conditions of the agreement:

Mary Hawkes, Director of Investigators, Social Workers, and Interns  $94,360
Tracy Scavarelli, Director of Legal Services  $100,360

Cher Hart, Business Manager $76,468

Adrienne Bradshaw, MSW $52,776

Resumes attached












Adrienne Bradshaw

Ohjective: Near-graduating MSW student with strong communication skills, experience in research,
program evaluation, data analysis, case management, assessments, and interventions seeking to
obtain employment in the legal mental health environment.

lducation:
BACHELOR OF THE ARTS | 08/2009-12/2013 | SOUTHEASTERN LOUISIANA UNIVERSITY

MAJOR: ENGLISH LITERATURE & LANGUAGE

MASTER’S DEGREE | 08/2020-12/2021 | TULANE SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK
MaJOR: SociAL WORK

e CERTIFICATION PROGRAM: MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION, AND FAMILY

e PHIALPHA HONOR SOCIETY
- EXTRACURRICULAR COURSES COMPLETED INCLUDE TREATMENT OF DEPRESSION AND ANXIETY, CLINICAL
TREATMENT WITH CHILDREN & ADOLESCENTS, AND CLINICAL PRACTICE IN ADDICTION,
- COMPLETED SOCIAL WELFARE & POLICY, DIVERSITY & SOCIAL JUSTICE, HBSE I & IT, COMMUNITY ORGANIZING
AND PoLicy ADvocacy, METHODS I & 11, ADVANCED METHODS I & I1, PROGRAM EVALUATION, DATA ANALYSIS &
INTERPRETATION, AND PSYCHOPATHOLOGY AND THE DSM-5.

Hard Skills

Microsoft Office

Google Drive

Zoom

Writing

Presentations

Assessments & Evaluations

Creating Treatment Plans & Interventions
Research, Program Evaluation, and Data Analysis
Crisis Management

Policy Adherence

Mandated Reporter Training

Soft Skills

Willingness to learn
Collaboration

Integrity & Accountability
Organization

Teamwork
Critical-thinking
Problem-solving

Effective Communication
Dependability



Professional Experience
SOCIAL WORK INTERN | ORLEANS PUBLIC DEFENDERS | 0121 TO PRESENT

Case Management (including referrals to inpatient substance use treatment, 10P, sober living, FACT, etc.)
Intake evaluations and assessments

Records requests

SMART goals

Psychoeducation

Crisis Intervention

Legal Case Mitigation

Biopsychosocial Assessments

Program Evaluation Research

SECRETARY OF HEART HEALTH | NORTH OAKS MEDICAL CENTER | 11/2018 TO 7/2020
Check-in patients for different cardiology procedures

Complete chart audits

Assist in electrocardiogram orders, such as scanning final results

Track Cath Lab procedures via Excel spreadsheets

Manage department phone calls

Email/phene correspondence

Assist patients & family members

Order department supplies & track department stock

Assist revenue integrity in charging & financial matters of the cardiology department
General administrative duties

UNIT SECRETARY | NORTH OAKS MEDICAL CENTER |06/2015TO 1212016

Manage unit & patient phone calls

Email/phone correspondence

Audit

Daily unit checklist

Assist patients & family members

Schedule outpatient appointments & procedures

e & & 0 0 0

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE | THE COCOA BEAN BAKERY | 06/2007 TO 05/2014

Obtain & verify orders
Email/phone correspondence
Schedule appointments

Walk-in customer service

Fulfill orders

Check inventory of items in house

¢ & & 00

Volunteering

@® CASA - Court Appointed Special Advacate
® HOT Team - North Oaks Medical Center Volunteer
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